I. The Disciplinary Action Includes Allegations and Proceedings Which Were Too 
Remote in Time as Contemplated by SER Fillinger v. Rhodes, 741 S.E. 2d 118 
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VII. The Mason County Civil Service Commission for Deputy Sheriff's erred by allowing 
the Sheriff to draft the decision ultimately accepted by the Commission verbatim. 

VIII. The Mason County Civil Service Commission for Deputy Sheriffs lawfully exercised 
its discretion/inherent authority when it made the decision to reinstate Sgt. Fmth 
and its reversal by Judge Farrell was Error; and, though Erroneous, Did Not Obligate 
Sgt. Fruth to Appeal at that Juncture.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


The -Petitioner, "Sgt.-RoberfE.-YruthIT(sometimes referredto as ''Sgt.Trutb''), was suspended 

with pay on February 11, 2011, "pending the outcome ofyour Domestic Violence Petition hearing in 

Family Court on February 17, 2011." (A.R. Vol. I, P.123). The Domestic Violence Petition was 

based on the unverified, expartepetition ofSgt. Fruth's then wife, Melissa Searls. (A.R. Vol. IV, Pp. 

553-63). The domestic violence matter was ultimately dismissed after a full hearing on the merits in 

the Family Court of Mason County on June 22, 2011. (A.R. Vol. IV, Pp.705-08). 

As discussed more fully below, at or around that same time, Sgt. Fruth had discovered that 

his wife was involved in an intimate relationship with Trey Anderson, a co-worker at the Mason 

County Ambulance Service. An encounter at the Village Inn Pizza Shop in Point Pleasant involving 

Sgt. Fruth, his then wife, and Trey Anderson also serves as the bases for certain of the disciplinary 

matters discussed herein. During that encounter, Sgt. Fruth's wife for the first time disclosed the 

existence ofthe adulterous affair with Anderson. (A.R. Vol III, P.4 73).Later that same evening, Sgt. 

Fruth was involved in an accident in a Sheriff's Department cruiser, where he left the roadway to 

avoid striking a deer(A.R. Vol. III, P.476), resulting in significant damage to the patrol car. 

While under suspension with pay, on February 24, 2011, Sheriff Anthony suspended Sgt. 

Fruth,"without pay, pending the outcome ofthe investigation ofthe criminal charges against you for 

violation of a Domestic Violence Petition filed by the West Virginia State Police." (A.R. Vol. I, 

P .124). The referenced violations concerned an allegation that Sgt. Fruth had improperly possessed 

ammunition in the pendency of the domestic violence action and that Sheriff Anthony had been 

requested to make indirect contact with Sgt. Fruth's wife, all ofwhich were subsequently dismissed 
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and not ultimately advanced in the action, sub judice. CA.R. Vol. IV, P .614 ).Conceming the February 

24, 2011 suspension, Sgt. Fruth was not afforded a pre-disciplinary hearing prior to the suspension, 

nor was a statement of reasons provided to the Civil Service Commission, as required by West 

Virginia Code Section 7-14-17Ca). On January 4, 2012, Sgt. Fruth was indicted for felony destruction 

of property, alleging intentional damage to the patrol vehicle, and the misdemeanor offense of 

reckless driving. Sgt. Fruth entered a no contest plea to the traffic offense of failure to maintain 

control, brought by way of Information. All of the referenced criminal charges were resolved by 

dismissal with prejudice. 

In connection with the No Contest plea to the traffic offense, the Circuit Court ordered a pre

sentence investigation to determine the existence to any right ofthe County for restitution relating to 

the damage to the cruiser. Based on representations of the Prosecuting Attorney, the Court found 

that, to a preponderance standard, there was no intentional conduct and ordered no restitution. Sgt. 

Fruth was fined $100, which brought that matter to a close. CA.R. Vol. I, P .149). While the Sheriff 

does not dispute that, at most, the traffic offense would be a group 1 violation, not susceptible to 

suspension or serious sanctions CA.R. Vol. III, P.457), the Sheriff maintained, that notwithstanding 

the findings of the Family Court and the Circuit Court, that which was collectively alleged was in 

fact intentional and warranted termination. 

Following adjudication of the misdemeanor traffic offense, Sgt. Fruth submitted a letter 

indicating his availability to return to work, in that all bases asserted by the Sheriff for the punitive 

action had been resolved in his favor. The Sheriff responded, "pursuant to your request for 

reinstatement, we have looked into the details of the automobile crash on February 11,2011. The 
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crash was intentional. Your actions were egregious." (A.R. Vol. IV, P.732).It was ultimately 

disclosed that on May 8, 2012, Cpl. Forest Terry had been assigned to investigate Sgt. Fruth (A.R. 

Vol. III, P.368) because the Sheriff, "... didn't believe that Sgt. Fruth should continue as a law 

enforcement officer." Terry further disclosed that, "it was kind ofa background investigation," and 

that the investigation was to be the same as would be for a "new hire" and cover the entire scope of 

Sgt. Fruth's work history, including the time preceding his employment by the Mason County 

Sheriff's Department. (A.R. Vol. III, P.369). Sgt. Fruth's demands to return to work, submitted 

personally and though his counsel, were unavailing; whereupon he submitted the matter for the 

consideration of the Deputy Sheriff's Civil Service Commission of Mason County. 

On June 12,2012 Sheriffs counsel informed Sgt. Fruth's counsel by letter that he was being 

suspended pending further investigation. The "further investigation," as indicated in that letter, 

asserted no additional conduct other that what was known prior to his February 24,2011 suspension, 

including a trivial matter from 1990 and others long since resolved in his favor. (A.R. Vol. N, Pp. 

598-603). 

The Civil Service Commission took the matter up for hearing on September 13, 2012 and 

found, in substance, in that no evidence in support ofthe Sheriff's notices ofFebruary 11,2012 and 

February 24, 2012 were properly before the Commission and that taking notice of the results of the 

actions alluded to by the Sheriff in the notices, and further recognizing the procedural infirmities, 

that Sgt. Fruth was ordered reinstated with certain ofhis backpay and attorneys' fees. (A.R. Vol. II, 

P.258-60). The following day, September 14,2012, the Sheriff informed Sgt. Fruth by letter, that the 

same allegations as discussed above, would serve as the basis for a recommended discharge of Sgt. 
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Fruth. CA.R. Vol. IV, P.733-34). Simply stated, the Sheriff simply repackaged the former allegations 

under the guise of a new action in an effort to purge the existing infirmities and restart the clock 

through a new action. 

A pre-disciplinary hearing was convened on October 10,2012 (A.R. Vol. II, P.233), during 

which evidence was presented that included times that Sgt. Fruth was employed by Hurricane Police 

Department in 1990 and other matters similarly remote in time and clearly preceded his service with 

the Mason County Sheriffs Department. Those matters also included cases from which Sgt. Fruth 

had been exonerated and accordingly not inclusive ofthe progressive disciplinary policy within the 

Sheriffs Department's own regulations. On October 23,2012, the matter was once again considered 

by the Mason County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service Commission. The Commission ruled, in 

substance, that the matters presented in support of the action were the same charges previously 

disposed ofor matters ofwhich the Sheriff had a longstanding awareness and had chosen not to act 

upon, and once again dismissed the case against Sgt. Fruth CA.R. Vol. I, P.12l-2). Sgt Fruth filed a 

limited appeal ofthe Commission's Decision on the single issue ofthe amount ofback pay awarded 

and the Sheriff filed an appeal of the Commission's Decision. 

During the pendency ofthat appeal to the Mason County Circuit Court, Sgt. Fruth returned to 

work and concededly performed at a satisfactory level. CA.R. Vol. III, P.461). Both Circuit Judges 

from the 5th Circuit recused themselves and the appeal was taken up by Judge Paul Farrell. sitting by 

designation ofthis Court. Judge Farrell's Decision remanded the case for a full evidentiary hearing to 

be conducted by the Mason County Civil Service Commission. (A.R. Vol. II, Pp. 261-69). 

During the Civil Service hearing that followed, which extended over three days of lengthy 
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testimony, the parties initially agreed and the Commission ruled that the hearing would be conducted 

in accordance with the West Virginia Rules of Evidence. During those proceedings, however, the 

Commission was persuaded by the Sheriffs counsel to use those rules "as a guide." (A.R. Vol. III, 

Pp. 298. 367, 377). However, as the record aptly reflects, that was done selectively so as to relax the 

requirements where it was advantageous to the Sheriff. As prominent examples, during those 

proceedings the Commission permitted unverified statements collected by Cpl. Terry of witnesses 

who were not present or even appearing on behalf of the Sheriff. (A.R. Vol. III, P. 371).The 

Commission further permitted an expert offered by the Sheriff, Stephen Cogar, a former State 

Trooper and attorney, to offer opinion evidence, in essence, that the investigation of the Sheriffhad 

been properly conducted and that the termination ofSgt. Fruth was warranted. (A.R. Vol. III, P. 401). 

Sgt. Fruth's former wife, Melissa Searls' pre-disciplinary hearing testimony was also admitted, in 

spite of the fact that she appeared and testified directly, all ofwhich is more fully discussed below. 

(A.R. Vol. III, Pp. 304,305). 

The Civil Service Commission found by its initial Order that the termination was warranted 

without listing findings offacts or conclusions oflaw.. (A.R. Vol. II, P. 270). That Order was then 

substituted by a second Order, authored by Sheriffs counsel, containing more, yet still insufficient 

information concerning its ruling. (A.R. Vol. II, Pp. 231-2). Sgt. Fruth appealed the Commission's 

Decision to the Mason County Circuit Court, which was taken up by Judge Thomas C. Evans III. 

During the pendency of the appeal, Judge Evans remanded the matter back to the Commission for 

more complete findings offacts and conclusions oflaw. (A.R. Vol. V, Pp. 818-19). A Civil Service 

meeting was convened, wherein it ordered, over Sgt. Fruth's objection, that the parties supply 
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proposed findings offacts and conclusions oflaw. Fruth's obj ection was based on the clear mandate 

ofthe Circuit Court that the Conmlission articulate the Commission's reasoning for its decision. The 

version supplied by the Sheriff's counsel was adopted and submitted to the Circuit Court verbatim. 

(A.R. Vol. VI, Pp. 878-931). Judge Evans' Final Order was entered on July 29, 2016 denying Sgt. 

Fruth's appeal. The present appeal followed. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT' 

At first, it is clear that the collective disciplinary proceedings are based upon the same 

allegations as first alleged'inthe-F ebruary 2011· suspensions ofSgt.Fruth.Sgt -Fruth-wasfirst given 

a pre-disciplinary hearing in October of2012, one and nineteen months after disciplinary action had 

been taken, and following his reinstatement by the Civil Service Commission. This was clearly 

through no fault ofhis own. During this period he had personally and through counsel demanded that 

he be reinstated as required by the West Virginia Code. Assuming arguendo the correctness ofJudge 

Farrell's determination of the requirement that the Sheriff be given a "full evidentiary hearing," the 

matter was not on a required track for decision until the hearings ofJanuary 2014, nearly three years 

past the time that the matter officially arose. The Sheriff's actions should be properly dismissed in 

accordance with the principles announced in Ser Fillinger v. Rhodes, 741 S.E. 2nd 118 (WV 2013) 

and its progeny. 

This action also involves significant deprivation of Sgt. Fruth's due process rights as 

proscribed by Articles 14 and Article 14C of Chapter 7 of the West Virginia Code. Prominently 

among those are his rights to a timely pre-disciplinary hearing, statutory notice to be filed by the 

Sheriff with the Deputy Sheriff's Civil Service Commission, adequate notice, and other rights 
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concerning the investigation of the case brought against him. 

The decision against Sgt. FlUth was based in critical part upon the expert testimony and 

opinions of Stephen Cogar, a former West Virginia State Police Officer and attorney, which 

contained, inter alia, the due process rights in the investigation and termination ofSgt. Fruth and that 

there was just cause to terminate him, all touching upon both legal and factual issues in the case, 

notwithstanding Rule 704 of the West Virginia Rules ofEvidence and the authorities relating to the 

same. 

Although the Civil Service Commission lUled prior to the commencement of the full 

evidentiary hearing held in this case that the West Virginia Rules of Evidence would be followed, 

once the proceedings commenced, that holding ofthe Commission was modified so as only to follow 

those lUles "as a guide." This was quite consequential to the result in those proceedings. First, the 

Sheriffs counsel improperly advised the Commission as to the provisions ofthe Rules ofEvidence, 

concerning hearsay evidence, as example. The Civil Service Commission was further persuaded to 

deviate from the Rules of Evidence selectively as it benefitted the Sheriffs case. 

An important part ofthe case below involved matters directly alleged by Sgt. FlUth's now ex

wife, to whom he was married at the time. She had given testimony at a pre-disciplinary hearing in 

this matter. Following that hearing, she testified both in the Family Court and as a live witness at the 

Civil Service proceedings. In both of the referenced proceedings, she refused to give testimony 

consistent with that of the pre-disciplinary hearing (then de novo at the Civil Service Commission 

hearing), whereupon her pre-disciplinary hearing testimony was improperly admitted. 

The Civil Service Commission, over the objection ofSgt. Fruth, permitted the Sheriffs and 
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its counsel to compose the decision that it ultimately adopted after the Circuit Court ordered that the 

Civil Service Commission submit a greater detail in its findings of facts, which were originally 

submitted by the Commission. The Civil Service Commission and the Court below erred in 

admitting and considering evidence concerning a domestic violence action and motor vehicle 

accident case where the matters had been resolved in courts of record to a preponderance standard 

and thus being res judicata and collaterally estopped. 

Prominent among the evidentiary errors in the case below was the admission and 

consideration ofa report composed by Cpl. Forest Terry ofthe Mason County Sheriffs Department. 

As the record below clearly demonstrates, substantial weight was given to his conclusions and the 

evidence which was unverified, mere interviews taken by him after which the witnesses to whom the 

statements were attributed did not appear in any proceeding and without any demonstration or indicia 

of reliability. Whether considered individually or collectively, the errors below warrant reversal of 

this action. Further, the decision below is clearly against the weight of the evidence, arbitrary, and 

capricious. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

lletitionerhere assel1s that certain of the legal issues implicated in this case are not 

adequately developed or touch on first impressions of this Court. Accordingly, Petitioner requests 

that he be afforded the opportunity for oral argument in this case as provided by Rule 19 ofthe West 

Virginia Rule of Appellate Procedure. 

ARGUMENT 
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I. 	 The Disciplinary Action Includes Allegations and Proceedings Which Were Too 
Remote in Time as Contemplated by SER Fillinger v. Rhodes, 741 S.E. 2d 118 
(W.Va. 2013) and its Progeny. 

The Sheriff suspended the Petitioner in February 11, 2011 with pay and February 24, 

2011 without pay and afforded him no pre-disciplinary processes as required by W.Va. Code §7-

14C-3, et seq. 

§7-14C-3. Hearing. 
(a) If the investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results in the 
recommendation of some punitive action, then, before taking punitive action the 
sheriff shall give notice to the deputy sheriff that he or she is entitled to a 
hearing on the issues by a hearing board. The notice shall state the time and 
place'ofthe 'hearing and ·the-issues involved-and -be deli vered -to-the deputy sheriff 
not less than ten days prior to the hearing. An official record, including testimony 
and exhibits, shall be kept of the hearing. 
(b) The hearing shall be conducted by the hearing board of the deputy sheriff 
except that in the event the recommended punitive action is discharge, suspension 
or reduction in rank or pay, and the action has been taken, the hearing shall be 
pursuant to the provisions of section seventeen, article fourteen of this chapter), if 
applicable. Both the sheriff and the deputy sheriff shall be given ample 
opportunity to present evidence and argument with respect to the issues involved. 
(Emphasis added) 

The civil service commission properly found that this obviated an important rights of the 

Petitioner and properly dismissed the action. CA.R. Vol. II, Pp. 258-60). Under the guise of a new 

disciplinary case, the Sheriff simply repackaged the allegations, which were then refiled as a new 

action and ordered a pre-disciplinary hearing to be convened, resulting in the Sheriffs 

) 

W. Va. Code §7-14-17 provides, in pertinent part: " ...which hearing shall be held within a 
period often days from the filing of the charges in writing or the written answer thereto, 
whichever shall last occur." 
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termination recommendation being ratified. (A.R. Vol. II, Pp. 233-34). The Commission, after 

hearing argument from the parties, properly finding that to be the case, once again dismissed the 

charges.2 (A.R. Vol. I, Pp. 121-22). The pre-disciplinary proceeding followed nineteen months of 

suspension. While the Sheriff has variously asserted, apparently as an afterthought, that there 

were exigent circumstances (discussed elsewhere in this brief), the suspension, at minimum, 

would have triggered the Petitioner's right to a hearing within ten days . 

. In every case of such removal, discharge, suspension or reduction, a copy of the 
statement of reasons therefor and of the written answer thereto, if the deputy 
desires to file such written answer, shall be furnished to the civil service 
commission and entered upon its records. [fthe deputy demands it, the civil 
service commission shall grant a public hearing, which hearing shall be held 
within a period often days from the filing of the charges in writing or the written 
answer thereto, whichever shall last occur. W. Va. Code §7-14-17 

This Court has recently undertaken critical analysis of statutory time constraints in 

disciplinary matters as affecting the rights of licensed employees and licensing boards in terms of 

jurisdiction. In SER Fillenger v. Rhodes, 230 W.Va. 560 (2013) and SER Miles v. W. Va. Bd. of 

Reg'd Prof. Nurses, Docket No. No. 15-0131 (W. Va. 2015) the Court found that delays outside 

of the prescribed time limits divested the regulating authority ofjurisdiction over the disciplinary 

2As noted ante, the Petitioner was subjected to a pre-disciplinary hearing after being subjected to 
the action, although counsel for the Sheriff represented to the Commission that he had been 
simply "laid off'. (A.R. Vol. VI, P. 936). 
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actions. Similarly, this Court held in State ex reI. York v. W. Va. Real Estate Appraiser 

Licensing and Certification Bd.,760 S.E.2d 856, 862 (2014) that " [t]he Board's actions are in 

excess of its jurisdiction, in that the complaints have not been handled in a timely fashion, as 

required [by] W. Va. Code 30-1-5(c)[.]". 

Sgt. Fruth is entitled to no less procedural protections and relief, particularly considering 

the multiple violations of the statutory time standards. Notwithstanding Petitioner's objection to 

the inclusion or consideration of the Sheriffs expert Stephen Cogar, discussed further below, 

even Mr. Cogar conceded that his examination was violative of the operative pre-disciplinary 

procedures of Article 14 C. "Q. And I want to know why is it proper to ignore the provision that 

he be given written notice? A: It's not proper. He should have been given a written notice." 

"Q. Do you find that excuseable that he wasn't? A: No." (A.R. Vol. III, P. 408). 

II. 	 It Was Error to Admit the Expert Witness Testimony of Attorney Stephen 
Cogar and to Base Decisions below on That Evidence. 

Over the objection of the Petitioner, expert testimony from former West Virginia State 

Police officer Stephen Cogar, now a practicing attorney. The Civil Service Commission's 

determinationwas-based-in-significant-part-on-his opinions. Thoseopinions-included-that 

following a review of the Forrest Terry report and hearing witness testimony that Sgt. Fruth's 

actions of 2011 warranted termination. He testified, inter alia, as to what witness "seemed to 

think were credible ..." (A.R. Vol.3, P. 403). "The jury is the trier of the facts and in performing 

that duty it is the sole judge as to the weight of the evidence and the credibility of the witnesses. " 

Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Martin, 687 S.E. 2d 360 (W. Va. 2009), citing Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Bailey, 155

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