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

affect the outcome of the hearing. Therefore, such violations do not constitute reversible error. 

See Reed v. Wimmer, 195 W. Va. 199,209,465 S.E.2d 199,209 (1995). 

Finally, the Petitioner incorrectly argues that his due process rights were violated, which 

warrants reversal, when he was not advised of his alleged right to a pre-disciplinary hearing 

following his February 24, 2011, suspension without pay, pending the outcome of the criminal 

violations of Ms. Fruth's DVP against him. As stated by ludge Farrell in his "Order Remanding 

Case to the Mason County Civil Service Commission for Deputy Sheriffs for a Full Evidentiary 

Hearing:" 
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The appropriate remedy for procedural due process errors in an 
administrative hearing is to remand the case with directions to 
remedy the defect. Ashley v. McMillian, 184 W. Va. 590, 402 
S.E.2d. 259 (1991), citing Clarke v. West Virginia Boards of 
Regents, 166 W. Va. 702, 279 S.E.2d. 169 (1981). (l.A. at 188). 

Therefore, following ludge Farrell's "Order Remanding Case to the Mason County Civil Service 

Commission for Deputy Sheriffs for a Full Evidentiary Hearing," all procedural due process 

violations, concerning either party, were remedied. (l.A. at 832, citing l.A. at 639). 

Furthermore, the Sheriff's Department contends that the Petitioner's due process rights 

were never violated due to the February 2011 suspensions because W. Va. Code 7-14-17 requires 

that following a suspension by a Sheriff (which was not pursuant to an investigation or an 

interrogation), a Deputy must demand a hearing before a Civil Service Commission. It is 

undisputed that the Petitioner failed to request reinstatement with the Sheriff s Department until 

May 29,2012. (l.A. at 826, citing l.A. at 731). 

Additionally, the decisions from State ex reI. Fillinger and its progeny were not violated 

because neither the Sheriffs Department nor the Civil Service Commission delayed the 

Petitioner's statutory rights to have this matter adjudicated. 

IV. Statement Regarding Oral Argument 

It is the Sheriffs Department's position that the decision process would be significantly 

aided by oral argument, as it would allow the parties to further address the arguments presented 

in this matter and to respond to the questions of the Court regarding the Petitioner's 

"Assignments of Error." 

V. Argument 

The Sheriffs Department will specifically address ten (10) of the eleven (11) 

"Assignments of Error" contained In "Petitioner's Brief," as detailed below. The Sheriffs 
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Department is not responding to Section X of Petitioner's "Assignments of Error" because it 

believes no cumulative or collective error exists, as explained throughout this Response. 

A. 	 The Mason County Civil Service Commission and the Sheriff's Department 
did not prevent the Petitioner from being timely heard and, at all times, 
acted within their statutory authority. 

This is the Sheriffs Department's Response to Petitioner's "Assignments of Error," 

Sections I and VI. 

In "Petitioners Brief" filed before this Court, the Petitioner first asserts as an "Assignment 

of Error" that the Civil Service Commission violated State ex reI. Fillinger v. Rhodes, 230 W. 

Va. 560, 741 S.E.2d 118 (2013) and its progeny. The Petitioner did cite this as a supposed error 

made by the Civil Service Commission in his 2014 "Petition for Appeal" filed before the lower 

Circuit Court (lA. at 197); however, he did not specifically argue, or even cite to, such alleged 

error in the "Discussion" section of said previous appeal. (J.A. at 199-204). 
, 

Nonetheless, the Civil Service Commission did not violate State ex reI. Fillinger and its 

progeny and, at all times, acted within its statutory authority. 

Specifically, State ex reI. Fillinger was a case in which The West Virginia Board of 

Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses (the "Board") sent a nurse notification that her 

hospital employers in March 2008 and September 2009 had filed complaints with the Board, 

suggesting that she had unlawfully obtained prescription narcotics. State ex reI. Fillinger at 562

563, 120-121. A Board investigation ensued. Years later, in January 2011, a consent agreement 

was offered by the Board and rejected by the nurse. An administrative hearing was then 

scheduled for July 26, 2011. [d. The day before the hearing was to take place, the Board 

continued it for no reason and later rescheduled it for September 8, 2011. !d. Thereafter, the 

nurse requested certain information from the Board concerning the upcoming administrative 
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hearing, such as which witnesses may be called to testify and what documents may be relied 

upon. /d. No response was received by the nurse until the day before the administrative hearing, 

when the Board again continued it until October 25,2011. Id. at 563-564, 121-122. Again, for a 

third and then a fourth time, the administrative hearing was continued. /d. The nurse then sought 

a writ of prohibition before this Honorable Court to dismiss with prejudice the 2008 and 2009 

complaints. Id. 

This Honorable Court found that: 

... the Board of Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses has 
failed to take definite action to conduct a hearing and enter a final 
decision on the 2008 and 2009 complaints. The petitioner, 
denying any wrongdoing concerning the accusations, engaged 
in no conduct which impeded the administrative process. 
Nevertheless, the Board has effectively denied the petitioner an 

opportunity to be heard in opposition to the allegations against 
her. (Emphasis added). Id. at 567, 125. 

Ultimately, the complaints were dismissed with prejudice by this Court. 

The Petitioner's reliance on the State ex reI. Fillinger case, as well as its progeny State ex 

rei. York v. W. Va. Real Estate Appraiser Licensing and Certification Bd., 236 W. Va. 608, 760 

S.E.2d 856 (2014) and State ex reI. Miles v. W. Va. Bd. of Registered Prof Nurses, 236 W. Va. 

100, 777 S.E.2d 669 (2015), is misguided. In all three (3) of these cases, the aggrieved parties 

(nurses and a realtor) sought relief from certain time delays of state "boards" when handling their 

complaints or reopening complaints that had been closed for several years. Most notably, unlike 

the cases cited by the Petitioner, the "board," or in this matter the Civil Service Commission, is 

not alleged to have delayed the Petitioner's statutory rights. 

Further, neither the Civil Service Commission nor the Sheriffs Department ever delayed 

the Petitioner's statutory right to have a public hearing regarding the Sheriffs Department's 
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suspensions of the Petitioner, pursuant to W. Va. Code § 7-14-1, et seq. As cited in "Petitioner's 

Brief," that statute states: 

No deputy sheriff of any county subject to the provisions of this 
article may be removed, discharged, suspended or reduced in rank 
or pay except for just cause, which may not be religious or 
political, except as provided in section fifteen of this article; and 
no such deputy may be removed, discharged, suspended or 
reduced in rank or pay except as provided in this article and in 
no event until the deputy has been furnished with a written 
statement of the reasons for the action. In every case of such 
removal, discharge, suspension or reduction, a copy of the 
statement of reasons therefor and of the written answer thereto, if 
the deputy desires to file such written answer, shall be furnished to 
the civil service commission and entered upon its records. If the 
deputy demands it, the civil service commission shall grant a 
public hearing, which hearing shall be held within a period of 
ten days from the filing of the charges in writing or the written 
answer thereto, whichever shall last occur. (Emphasis added). 

On February 11, 2011, Chief Deputy Fields advised the Petitioner, in writing, that he was 

being subjected to punitive action when he was suspended with pay pending the outcome of his 

DVP hearing in Family Law Court on February 17, 2011. (l.A. at 826, citing l.A. at 457 and 

730). Then, on February 24, 2011, the Petitioner was placed on unpaid suspension, via written 

statement by then-Sheriff Anthony, pending the outcome of his criminal charges relating to the 

alleged violations of the DVP. (l.A. at 826, citing l.A. at 639). The Petitioner never provided a 

written answer to either suspension, nor did he request a public hearing, in accordance with the 

statute cited above. Thus, if the Petitioner is attempting to allege that his Civil Service 

Commission hearings concerning the suspensions were untimely, it is due to his own fault. 

It was not until May 29, 2012, that the Petitioner requested to be reinstated with the 

Sheriffs Department, citing that the criminal charges relating to violations of the DVP had been 
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dismissed, but failing to mention that the dismissal was a result of a plea deal. (l.A. at 826, 

citing l.A. at 731). 

The Petitioner attempts to assert that the Sheriffs Department should have given him 

notice, prior to his suspensions, that he was entitled to a hearing, pursuant to W. Va. Code § 7-

14C-3. However, said Code section requires notice following an investigation or interrogation. 

If the investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results 
in the recommendation of some punitive action, then, before 
taking punitive action the sheriff shall give notice to the deputy 
sheriff that he or she is entitled to a hearing on the issues by a 
hearing board. The notice shall state the time and place of the 
hearing and the issues involved and be delivered to the deputy 
sheriff not less than ten days prior to the hearing. An official 
record, including testimony and exhibits, shall be kept of the 
hearing. (Emphasis added). 

(W. Va. Code § 7-14C-3). 

This Court has previously held: 

W. Va. Code § 7-14C-3 (1995) (Repl. Vol. 2006) contemplates 
two distinct types of hearings. The first type of hearing, which is 
governed by W. Va. Code §§ 7-14C-3(a & b), is a predisciplinary 
hearing, which is conducted before disciplinary action has been 
taken and is held before a hearing board. Alternatively, the second 
type of hearing, which is governed by W. Va. Code § 7-14C-3(b), 
is conducted after disciplinary action in the form of "discharge, 
suspension or reduction in rank or pay" has been taken and is held 
in accordance with the provisions of W. Va. Code § 7-14-17 
(1996) (Repl. Vol. 2006). 

Syl. Pt. 6, Burgess v. Moore, 224 W. Va. 291, 685 S.E.2d 685,686 (2009). 

In Burgess, a Corporal in the Sheriffs Department was demoted to the rank of Deputy for 

refusing to show up for work. Burgess at 292. An investigation was conducted on June 19, 

2006, and the Corporal requested a pre-disciplinary hearing. /d, at 294. Thereafter, no pre

disciplinary hearing was held, and the Corporal was demoted to Deputy on August 3, 2006. /d. 

at 294. This Court found that, because the Corporal demanded a pre-disciplinary hearing before 
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any disciplinary action had been taken, the Corporal should have a right to that pre-disciplinary 

hearing under W. Va. Code §7-14C-3. Id. at 299. 

The facts of Burgess are easily distinguishable from the case at hand. In Burgess, the 

Corporal requested a pre-disciplinary hearing before any disciplinary action had been taken, thus 

giving him a right to a hearing under W. Va. Code §7-14C-3. On the other hand, the Petitioner 

was suspended in 2011 without an investigation and was, therefore, only entitled to a Civil 

Service Commission hearing, if he demanded it, after the disciplinary action had been taken, 

under the provisions ofW. Va. Code §7-14-17. 

Therefore, the Sheriffs Department did not need to automatically schedule a hearing, 

pursuant to the West Virginia Code. Then-Sheriff Anthony's suspensions fall under the 

jurisdiction of W. Va. Code § 7-14-17 as cited above, whereat the deputy must "demand" a 

public hearing, which the Petitioner undisputedly did not do. 

Nonetheless, W. Va. Code § 7-14C-3 is relevant in this matter because an investigation 

was ordered by newly appointed Sheriff Roach, in March 2012. At that time, the Petitioner was 

on his original unpaid suspension as ordered by then-Sheriff Anthony; however, additional issues 

had risen since said suspension was initiated. For instance, in January 2012, the Petitioner was 

indicted for felony destruction of property, alleging intentional damage to the patrol vehicle and 

the misdemeanor offense of reckless driving. (See "Petitioner's Brief' at pg. 3). Sheriff Roach's 

continued suspension of the Petitioner, on June 12, 2012, advised the Petitioner that he could 

exercise his right to have the matter heard, pursuant to West Virginia Code. (l.A. at 598). 

Thereafter, this matter's lengthy procedural history before the Civil Service Commission 

began, which included numerous Civil Service Commission hearings and two (2) Circuit Court 

appeals. The Petitioner continually alleges that the Sheriffs Department "repackaged" the 
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February 2011 allegations following an adverse ruling from the Civil Service Commission. 

However, what actually occurred was that two (2) separate actions by two (2) different Sheriffs 

and invoking two (2) different statutory requirements involving similar facts were at issue before 

the Civil Service Commission. Therefore, two (2) Civil Service Commission hearings were held, 

two (2) orders were issued, and both were timely appealed by the Sheriffs Department. (1.A. at 

2 and 5). 

Ultimately, the matter concluded with a Full Evidentiary Hearing before the Civil 

Service Commission, which found and concluded that "just cause" existed for the Petitioner's 

termination, based on the events from February 2011 and onward. (1.A. at 912). During said 

hearing, the Civil Service Commission did not give any weight to matters involving the 

Petitioner dating before 2011. (/d.) Never was the Petitioner's right to have himself heard 

regarding his suspension and ultimate termination delayed or impeded by the Civil Service 

Commission or the Sheriffs Department. The Petitioner was granted a timely hearing and case 

information every step of the way. Additionally, Petitioner has not proffered any evidence that 

could be analogous to State ex reI. Fillinger and its progeny. 

B. 	 The Civil Service Commission appropriately ruled within its statutory 
authority not to strictly abide by the West Virginia Rules of Evidence. 

This is the Sheriffs Department's Response to Petitioner's "Assignments of Error" 

Sections II, III, IV, and V. 

Throughout "Petitioner's Brief," he continually assigns error to the Civil Service 

Commission's ruling that it would not strictly abide by the West Virginia Rules of Evidence, but, 

instead, would follow a more relaxed standard. 

W. Va. Code § 7 -14-6 states, in part, that: 
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The civil service commission in each such county shall: 

(1) Prescribe and enforce rules and regulations for carrying into 
effect the provisions of this article [Chapter 7 Article 14 titled 
"Civil Service for Deputy Sheriffs]. All rules and regulations so 
prescribed may, from time to time, be added to, amended or 
rescinded. 

Similar to other agencies, the Civil Service Commission, made up of three (3) non-attorneys, 

chose not to strictly follow the West Virginia Rules of Evidence, but, while doing so, did not 

misapply the controlling law that a Deputy may only be terminated for "just cause." See SyI. pts. 

1-3, Mangum. An analogous example of a similar hearing procedure is that of West Virginia's 

Unemployment Compensation "Claim Procedure" which states, in part: 

The board shall establish, and may from time to time modify 
and amend, rules and regulations for: 
(1) The conduct and determination of benefit cases appealed to it, 
or to an appeal tribunal; 
(2) The form of all papers and records thereof; 
(3) The time, place, and manner of hearings; 
(4) Determining the rights of the parties; and the rules need not 
conform to the common-law or statutory rules of evidence and 
procedure and may provide for the determination of questions of 
fact according to the predominance of the evidence. (Emphasis 
added) 

W. Va. Code § 21A-7-13. 

This Court has stated that "[u]nder Rule 103(a), to warrant reversal, two (2) elements 

must be shown: error and injury to the party appealing. Error is harmless when it is trivial, 

formal, or merely academic, and not prejudicial to the substantial rights of the party assigning it, 

and where it in no ways affects the outcome of the trial." Reed v. Wimmer, 195 W. Va. 199,209, 

465 S.E.2d 199, 209 (1995); see also McDougal v. McCammon, 193 W. Va. 229, 239-39, 455 

S.E.2d 797-98 (1995). The Civil Service Commission's alleged violations of the Rules of 

Evidence were harmless because they are trivial in light of the totality of the evidence presented 
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in support of the Petitioner's termination and, therefore, did not affect the outcome of the Full 

Evidentiary Hearing. 

The Petitioner is unable to factually justify any violations of the West Virginia Rules of

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